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The appearance of Quebec cannot fail to suggest many
recollections to the strangor who looks upon its walls for

the first time, for, thougli it is not the oldest settlement of

the French colonists, all the most striking events of

Canadian history are associated with its foundation and
growth. Here, in 1535, Jacques Cartier first landed at

the Indian settlement of Stadacona, and here, nearly

eighty years after, Champlain settled, making Quebec th«

future capital of New France. A capital which in 1629,

or twenty years after, was taken by Captain Kirk with a

fleet of three small ships, from a population starving and
devoid of muskets even for its small garrison. Hero tx:)o

fell the young and brave Wolfe, and his equally brave

antagonist Montcalm. And here fell Montgomery in his

desperate attack at night in the midst of a snow storra

—

which, e\e daylight broke, had covered in his cold winding

sheet the stricken brave vjho had fallen in the rash attack.

All these things have passed away—the frowning fortifica-

tions preside over peace and busy commerce, and of the

many hundreds of ships now lying in her roads and at her

wharves, are all peaceful merchantmen receiving their

loads of timber from the far away Ottawa. But let us

disembark and climb the steep ascent to the Upper Tow».

ft
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We would recommend the stranger, as soon as be finds

himself in readiness to proceed from his lodgings for the

purpose of enjoying the sqenery of Quebec and its envi-

rons, to visit in the first place the Citadel, and place him-

self near to the flag staff. His interest will be more com-
pletely gratified, if he be accompanied by an individual

conversant with the surrounding localities and their asso-

ciations. The Citadel, which surmounts the summit of

Cape Diamond, is three hundred and fifty feet above the

River, and includes about forty acres. This fortress, ad-

mitted as unequalled by any military work on this Con-
tinent, and as second to few of the most celebrated fort-

resses in the Old World has been frequently and appro-

priately called the " Gibraltar of America," Hence is

commanded a couj> d'oeil, which American and European
travellers have pronounced unsurpassed in the New and
Old Worlds. The view embraces the oppposite banks

.of the majestic river for forty miles up and down, backed
by extensive plains receding to lofty mountains in the

distance, the Island of Orleans between its shores, and
on either hand the lovely village of Pointe Levi and that

of Beauport, whilst the Great River and the St. Charles

unite in forming the magnificent basin, on whose bosom
vessels of every size are continually floating. Here the

position of the City, on the tongue of land formed by these

rivers, is well seen. The Cape is composed of dark-

coloured slate, in which are found in veins, quartz crys-

tals, sparkling like diamonds^ and hence arose the name
of Cape Diamond, A walk along the ramparts above the

Esplanade is a delightful promenade. Hence the eyes
, rest on the small group of hills, forming the portal to the

.wilds which are trodden only by the feet of the Indian

.
bursters as far as Hudson's Bay— the lower range of

j:inountains forming a boundary to civilization in this di-

^ rection. The St,, Ciarles is seen to most advantage at

sun set, when its shores, studded with white buildings,
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are illuminated by his declining rays, as they momenta-
rily rest on the chain of hills above the beautiful Valcar-
tier.—The Obelisk to the memory of Wolfe and Mont-
calm stands on the Promenade between the gardens at-

tached to the Castle. The Earl of Dalhousie, when
Governor General, originated the erection of this monu-
ment, and contributed handsomely to the subscription

fund. Captain Young, of the 79th Highlanders, prepared
the design. For the benefit of those who do not under-

stand the Latin language, we subjoin a translation of the

two inscriptions. " This monumental stone to the me-
mory of the illustrious men, Wolfe and Montcalm, was
laid by George, Earl of Dalhousie, Governor-iurChief over

I
all the British Provinces in North America ; a work ne-

glected for many years (what is there more worthy of a
gallant general 1) he promoted by his influence, encou-
raged by his example, and favoured by his munificence.

15th November, 1827, George IV. reigning King of Great
Britain. Military prowess gave them a common death,

History, a common fame, Posterity, a common monument.
In the year of our Lord, 1827." It is not devoid of inte-

rest to record here, that, when the foundation-stone of

this monument was laid in presence of His Excellency,

the Governor-in-Chief, the Lord Bishop of Quebec, the

Chief Justice, the Committee of Superintendence, and a

large assemblage of Ladies and Gentlemen, the ceremo-
ny derived a peculiar interest from the presence of Mr.
Thompson, one of the few survivors (supposed to be the

sole one in Canada) of the gallant army, that served un-

der Wolfe on the memorable 13th of September, 1759.

This veteran, then in his 95th year, walked with the

party that accompanied the Earl, and leaned on the arm
of the officer, whose chaste and appropriate design for

the monument was adopted. The venerable man, hav-
ing been called upon by the Governor to assist as a Free
]ifason in the ceremony, with a firm hand gave the three

*>
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mystlo strokes with the mallet on the stone. He has since

paid the debt of nature, having died on the 25th of Au-
gust, 1830, in the 98lh year of his age. He was for a

long time Overseer of Works in the Engineer Depart-

ment of the Garrison. He was born at Tain, the county-

town of Ross-shire in Scotland ; and, having come to this

country in General Wolfe's army, was at the capture of

Louisbourgh in Cape Breton Island, and in the unsuccess-

ful affair near Montmorenci Falls. He also took part in

the defence of Quebec against the attacks of the Ameri-
can Generals, Arnold and Montgomery, in 1775. When
his remains were conveyed to the grave with military

honours, the band and firing party were furnished by the

15th Regiment, the senior corps in garrison, which by a

singular coincidence happened to be one of those which
formed the army under Wolfe.
The traveller might now descend through the Place

d'Armes to the Seminary Gardens—The English or

Protestant Cathedral is one of the handsomest modern
edifices in the City. It was consecrated in 1804. The
communion plate is very magnificent, and was presented

by King George the Third. His Majesty also presented

the books for Divine service—the altar-cloth, &o. The
spire, which is one hundred and fifty-two feet above the

ground, and covered with tin, from the church standing

on nearly the highest ground in the city, is a very

conspicuous object at a great distance. Within is erect-

ed a handsome monument of white marble to the memory
of the late Dr. Mountain, first Bishop of Quebec, who
procured the erection of the building. Beneath the altar

are interred the remains of the Duke of Richmond, Gov-
ernor-General of these Provinces, who died of hydro-

phobia, in August, 1819. A few other handsome monu-
ments adorn the walls. On the north side of the Church,

there stood, since Quebec was a city, a huge elm-tree,

one of the aborigines of the forest. It was blown down

fiti
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during a squall some years ago. Within the enclosure

stands the Rectory, in which the Bishop of Quebec re-

side ; a small chapel is attached. There are besides

four chapels of the Church of England within the Parish
of Quebec, viz.—that of the Holy Trinity, St. Matthew's
or the Free Chapel, St. Paul or the Mariner's Chapel,
and St. Peter's. The Church and Convent of the Recol-
lets or Franciscans were formerly situated near this spot,

having been destroyed by fire in 1796. On a part of

their grounds the Church stands. This order is now ex-

tinct in Canada. The Court House, which is a large

modern structure of stone, contains on the ground-floor

apartments for holding the Quarter Sessions and other

inferior Courts, offices of Clerks of the different Courts,

&c., &c. Above there is a spacious chamber, in which
are held the Superior Court, Criminal Court, the Court
of Appeals, and the Admiralty Court. There are also

offices for the High Sheriff and other magistrates, and a
room for occasional Militia Courts-martial. It occupies,

like the English Church, a part of the site on which stood

a monastery and church of the Recollets, which were
destroyed by fire in 1796. We shall no^^ briefly allude

to such pullio edifices as seem worthy of notice from
their antiquity or interesting associations. The Castle

of St. Louis was built shortly after the city was fortified

with solid works, and comprised four acres, once forti-

fied ; but the great extension of the works rendered

the walls superfluous, and they were allowed to go to

decay. Here was the residence of the Representative of

the Crown, while Quebec continued the Seat of Govern-
ment. The Castle was entirely consumed by fire in

1834. The site is laid out for a promenade, from which
a most extensive view of the surrounding country may be-

obtained. It is called Durham Terrace. The largest

religious edifice is the Roman Catholic Cathedral. It

was built under the auspices of the first Bishop of Que- ^
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bee, and was consecrated in 1666, under the title of the

Immaculate Conception, It is two hundred and sixteen

feet long by one hundred and eighty in breadth, and
stands on ground belonging to the Fahrique, or Church
land. It is divided into a nave and two aisles. At the

upper end of the former is the grand altar ; and in the

side aisles are four chapels, dedicated to different saints.

It is dedicated to Notre Dame de la Victoire, and can
accommodate about four thousand persons. Adjoin-

ing the Cathedral stands the Seminary, forming three

sides of a square, and occupying with its attached build-

ings a large space of ground. It was founded and en-

dowed in 1663 by Monseigneur de Laval de Montmo-
rency, first Bishop of Canada. During his life-time the

buildings were twice burnt to the ground. Having re-

signed his Bishopric, he passed the last twenty years of

his life within the Seminary. This institution was origi-

nally intended for the instruction of the Catholic Clergy
exclusively. The eaily regulations have long ago been
set aside; and students of the Catholic persuasion, in-

tended for any profession, are instructed in the diflferent

branches of literary and scientific knowledge, on paying
the trifling sum of 5s. annually for defraying incidental

expenses. Pupils are boarded at the very moderate
charge of Jei2 10s. yearly. The establishment is di-

vided into two branches, distinguished as the Grand and
Petit Seminaire. The course includes Latin and French,
Mathematics, Belles-lettres, Moral and Natural Philoso-

phy, Astronomy, Chemistry, Drawing, Music, &c., &c.
Besides the requisite domestic apartments, such as dor-

mitories, refectories, &c., it contains halls for the senior

and junior classes, and residences for the Superior, Direc-

tors, Professors, and different masters. These incum-
bents receive no emoluments, as they consecrate thera-

«elves gratuitously to their arduous labours. The insti-

tution only guarantees "food and raiment'' in sickness

^



THE QUEBEC GUIDE.
f!

and health. The annual exhibitions are most interest-

ing, and are attended by crowds of the respectable citi-

zens, and parents and guardians of pupils from a dis-

tance. The Catholic Bishop resides in a large cut-stono

house in rear of the Cathedral. It was built in 1849.

and has accommodation for upwards of one hundred of

the Clergy, many of whom have frequent occasion to

visit Quebec. In the Bishop's ante-chamber are sus-

pended the portraits of his twelve predecessors. The
chapel contains the best collection of paintings (by emi-

nent masters of the French school) in this country. The
library contains upwards of nine thousand volumes ; and
there is a valuable collection of philosophical instru-

ments, besides fossils, minerals, Indian curiosities, &c.
The Ursuline Convent and Church of St. Ursula, are

neat structures, surrounded by large productive gardens.

This establishment was founded in 1639, by Madame do

la Peltrie, for the purpose of extending the benefits of

education to the young females of the colony. Pupils

have resorted thither from the United States, Nova Sco-

tia, and Prince Edward's Island. It contains a Supe-
rior, fifty Nuns, and six novices, who give instruction

in reading, writing, and needle-work. They are very

assiduous in embroidery and other ornamental works,

especially for ecclesiastical vestments. Considerable

prices are obtained for their fancy-work, and by this

means, and the produce of the gardens, the revenue

of t/he community is increased. The Convent has

been twice destroyed by fire, in 1650 and 1686. \t

is worthy of honorable notice, that on both occasions

the unfortunate outcasts, to the number of fourteen

and twenty-five respectively, were most hospitably

sheltered for the space of three weeks under the

roof of the HospifaliireSy or Nuns of the Hotel Dieu.

^Within the precincts of the Convent are interred the

^remains of the gallant Marquis de Montcalm, who was
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mortally wounded in the eventful battle on the Plains of

Abraham in 1759. Lord Aylmer, when Governor-in-

Ohief, caused a marble slab with an appropriate inscrip-

tion to bo erected to his memory in the Chapel. Tha
Chapel, contains about a dozen paintings which may be

examined on application to the Cliaplain. Tliose within

the Convent are not open to the public. This establish-

ment is usually visited by strangers, who, on maldng ap-

plication to the Roman Catholic Bishop, will receive the

necessary introduction or permission. On the arrival of

Jesuits in Canada in 1635, they erected a suitable habi-

tation, the destruction of which a few years afterwards

made way for their spacious Monastery. It was forfeit-

ed on the suppression of that order, and at the conquest

was regarded as Crown property. It was formerly sur-

rounded by gardens, which were then destroyed and con-

verted into a place of exercise for the troops. The citi-

zens with much regret saw felled to the ground tho

stately trees, yet untouched by decay, that had been tho

primeval tenants of the site at the foundation of the city.

The elegant building formerly denominated the Bishop's

Palace, standing on an elevated spot, is very conspicuous,

and originally had a chapel connected therewith. Tho
Bishop having accepted an annuity in lieu of it, the gov-
ernment fitted it up for the accommodation of the two
branches of the Legislature, by whom it continued to be
used for their session! for many years until it was des-

troyed by fire. The Quebec Library, a valuable collec-

tion of books numbering upwards of six thousand volumes
was for several years in this building. It was founded in

1779, during the administration of General Haldimand,
who liberally contributed one hundred volumes of valua-

ble works towards its formation. This building con-
tained also the Museum of the Literary and Historical

Society, which was founded in 1824, and united in 18S59

to that for the Promotion of Arts and Sciences. The
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Mineralogical and Botanical colleotions are said to bo
valuable. . . .

>
. , ,

The Artillery Barracks, which form a range of stone

buildings upwards of live hundred feet in length, roughly
constructed, but very substantial and well arranged, were
erected before 17r>0, for the accommodation of troops by
which the garrison was re inforced, and were then distin-

guished as the Casernes Nouvclks. Besides quartering

the artilh^rymcn, they contain an ordnance-ofRco, store-

houses, workshops, and an armory. The armory which
occupies several apartments, contains, in a state of com-
plete repair and readiness for immediate use, small arms
of every description, sufficient for the equipment of twenty
thousand men. The admiration of strangers is excited

by the fanciful coup-cVoill, which is presented by the dis-

play of the arms in various designs and emblematical
devices.

Among public places in the Upper Town wo may men-
tion Durham Terrace, and the Esplanade, the latter be-

ing the chief theatre for military exercises. A little to

the west of Hope-Gate stands the building once occupied

by the brave Marquis de Montcalm, now divided into

three private residcMCcs. It is only remarkable now as

having been the residence of the French General, whoso
fame has been perpetuated with that of his antagonist

Wolfe.

In St. Anne's Street is St. Andrew's Church in con-

nexion with the Scotch Establishment. A Minister of

that Church is believed to have officiated to the Presby-

terians since the conquest in 1759. It is ascertained that
•• an apartment was assigned by the King's Representa-

tive in the Jesuits'* College as a place of worship for tho

members of the Scotch Church" previously to 1767, and
was occupied as such without interruption until J 807,

when Colonel Brock, commandant, requested the congre-

gation to remove on the shortest notice, as it was found

%
"\
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necessary to appropriate the apartment, to the accommo-
dation of the troops. In November the congregation re-

moved to the lower room of the Court-House. In No-
vember of 1808, Ilis Kxcellency, Governor Craig, granted

the lot ofground on which the present Church now stands.

It was opened in November, 1810, by the late Rev. Dr.

Spark, who died in 1819. In 1821 it was found inade-

quate for the accommodation of the members, when the

Earl of Dalhousie was pleased to grant an additional

space of ground, on which the present enlarged church,

which was completed in 1824, and a comfortable manse
for the Minister, now stand. The Church accommo-
dates thirteen hundred sitters. In St. Francis Street

stands St. John's Church, previously a Congregational

Chapel. It was erected in 1816. In 1830 the Congre-
gation having conformed to the doctrine, discipline, and
laws of the Church of Scotland, received the ministra-

tions of a Minister of that church. At the disruption of

the Scottish Establishment, a majority of the Congrega-
tion connected themselves with the Free Church of Scot-

land. It is now occupied as a Temperance Hall, where
the Sons of Temperance hold their meetings, the congre-

gation of the Free Church having since built a beautiful

gothic edifice, called Chalmer's Church, in St. Ursule
Street, which will be long remembered as the scene of

the Gavazzi's Riots. The Wesleyan Methodists have
two Chapels, one in St. Stanislaus Street, (erected in

1850) a plain but beautiful edifice in the Gothic style,

the interior of which is tastefully fitted up, a fine organ
has also been introduced—the other in St. Louis Suburb,
is called the " Centenary Chapel."
The Lower Town extends along th^ base of the preci-

pice on the summit of which the Upper Town is built.

The site is almost entirely the creation of human indus-
try, having been gained by excavation from the base of

^^the precipice, or redeemed from the river by building out

^r
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into its waters. The towns are connected by Mountain

Street, which was formerly almost impassable far carri-

ages. Foot passengers avail themselves of the shorter

passage, popularly known as the Break neck Stairs.

The wharves are very extensive, and are generally car-

ried out upwards of two hundred yards into the river.

The Chapel {Sucvmale, i. e, in aid of the Parish Church)

standihg in the Square, is of great antiquity, as it was

built and used as a church before 1690. In that year Sir

Wm. Phipps in attempting to capture Quebec was de-

feated ; and the Fe/.e de Notre-Dame de la Victoire was
instituted for annual celebration in this church on the 7th

of October. After the shipwreck of the English fleet in

1711, which was regarded by the inhabitants not only as

a second victory but as a miraculous interposition in their

favour, the church received its present name of Notrc-

Danie des VIrtoircs, that both events might be commem-
orated at once. We may here notice the other Roman
Catholic Churches, viz. : that of the Congregation, on the

hill leading from the Esplanade and St. John's Gate, and

that in the populous suburb of St. Roch. The former is

perfectly plain in the interior, while the latter is well

finished and has several paintings. Among them is one

of Bishop Plessis, a great benefactor to this Church.

Another has also been erected in St. John's Suburbs,

equal in size to the Cathedral. St. Patrick's occupies

an area of one hundreiP and thirty-six by fifty-two feet.

Its corner stone was laid in the fall of 1831, and it was
opened for religious service on the first Sabbath of July,

1833. The steeple is well proportioned, and stands one

hundred and twenty feet from the ground to the ball sup-

porting the cross. The interior is calculated to strike

the beholder with religious awe and admiration. c -

The Quebec Exchange, a commodious edifice of cut

stone, was erected in 1828-9, and has answered the san-

guine expectations of the proprietors. The second-floor

k
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i5»"wliero merchants most do conp^rcp^atc/' and Is devoted

to the Reading-room, which is admirably conducted;

the upper part contains the rooms of the Board of

Trade. 'I'ho Quebec Bank, which was established in

1818 and incorporated in 1822, occupies the lower

fitory of the handsome edifice built by the Quebec
Fire Assurance Company, whose office is on the

second story. In this part of the Lower Town are the

Branch Agencies of the Bank of Montreal, l^ank of Bri-

tish North America and Montreal City Bank. The
King's Wharf, which is appropriated to the purposes of

Government, has on it extensive stores belongnig to the

Commissariat Department, which were erected in 1821.

Here land and embark the officers of the Army and Navy,
the troops, &c. Tlie building formerly used as a Custom
House adjoins on the west. Nearly opposite to this there

anciently stood a barrier, where the two ways diverge,

one to the steps leading to the Upper Town, and th(i other

to the Harbour. Close to thir^ spot Montgomery was
killed as above mentioned, 'Jlst December, 1775. At
some distance beyond (about two miles) is Wolfe's Cove
where the intrepid leader, from v/bence it derives its namo»
succeeded in ascending the ClifT, and in forming his army
in battle-array on the i)lains of Abraham. The Marino
Hospital was erected for the reception of sailors and
others landing in Quebec affiictod with disease. It is

supported by a tax of one pen% a ton levied on each
vessel arriving from Sea, and a proportion of the tax upon
Emigration. It stands on the bank of the River St.

Charles, nearly opposite to the spot where Jacques Car-
tier first wintered in 1535. The ceremony of laying the

first stone was performed by Lord Aylmer, Govemor-in-
Chief, in May, 1832. It was opened in July, 1834. Its

estimated cost was twenty-three thousand pounds or

ninety-two thousand dollars. The exterior is of the lonio

order ; and the proportions are taken from the Temple
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of Muses on the Hissu« near Athens. The firflt story

contains Catholic and Protestant Chapols with apart-

ments for olTicIating Ministers, apartments for ITouso-

keoper, steward, and Nurses, wards for sixty patients,

besides two kitchens, store-room;?; baths, &c. The prin-

cipal story contains the large Entrance Hall, apartments

for the Medical Ollicers, their Examining Rooms, and
Operating Theatres, besides a Museum, and accommoda-
tion for sixty-oight patients. The third story contains

apartments for the chief nurses, and wards for one hun-

dred and forty patients. The upi>er story is appropria-

ted as a Lying-in-llospital for thirty-four patients. The
attics will contain sixty; so that there is accommodation
for three hundred and sixty-two persons. Each story is

supplied with cold, hot, and vapour baths. In the base-

ment are cellars, kitchens, laundry, &:c. The entire

premises contain an iii'oa of about six acres, laid out in

gardens and promenade grounds for convalescents.

In the month of May and June of 1845, at an exact

interval of lour week.';, Qnel-co was visited by two most
calamitous fires. So rapid and extensive was the des-

truction that nearly one-third of the population was ren-

dered houseless, and the entire suburbs of St. Koch and
St. John's reduced to arches. About sixteen hundred
buildings, of which twelve hundred w^ere dwellings, were
destroyed. The total loss was estimated at eight hun-
dred and seventy-five thousand pouuds, or five millions

and five hundred tliousand dollars, of which about one
hundred and twenty-five thousand pounds, or five hun-
dred thousand dollars was in.sured. About forty lives

were lost. This av/ful conflagration was arrested mainly

'

through the noble exertions of the 43rd and 89th Kegi-
ments, then composing the Garrison, and of part of the
Royal Artillery. The appeals of the Committee of the

Quebec Relief Fund were nobly responded to, not only
by the Mother Country ar.'l the Sister Provinces, but by
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n the Colonies generally and by the United States. A
sum, amounting, we believe, to nearly one hundred thou-

sand pounds, was thus raised, and tho sufferers were en-

abled to rebuild their houses in mar.y instances in a more
substantial manner than before. The Corporation en-

joined the use of bricks and stone instead of wood for the

walls, and of tin instead of shingles for the roofs.

Having brought under the Tourist's notice the princi-

pal features within the City of Quebec that seem worthy
of his attention, we propose now to accompany him in a

few excursions to the surrounding country. A morning's

ramble to the Plains of Abraham will not fail to recal

historical recollections and to gratify a taste for beantifdl

scenery. On leaving the St. Louis Gate, let the traveller

ascend the counterscarp on the left, that leads to the

Glacis of the Citadel; and hence pursuing a direction to

the right, let him approach one of the Martello Towers,
whence he may enjoy a beautiful view of the St. Law
rence. A little beyond let him ascend the right bank,

and he reaches the celebrated Plains of Abraham near

the spot where General Wolfe fell. On the highest

ground, surrounded by wooden fences, can clearly be

traced out the redoubt where he received the fatal wound.
He was carried a few yards in the rear and placed against

a rock till he expired. It has since been removed.
Within an enclosure lower down and near to the road is

the stone-well from which they brought him water The
English right nearly faced this redoubt, and on this po-

sition the French left rested. The French army arrived

on the Plains from the right of this position, as it came
from Beauport and not from Quebec ; and, on being de-

feated, retired down the heights by which it had ascend-

ed, and not into Quebec. In front of the Plains from
this position stands the house of Marchmont. It is erect-

ed on the site of a French redoubt that once defended

the ascent from Wolfe's Cove. Here landed the British
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army under Wolfe's command, and, on mounting tho

banks, carried this detached work. The troops in the

Garrison are usually reviewed on the Plains. The Tou-
rist may farther enjoy a beautiful ride. Let him leave

by St. Louis Gate and pass the Plains, and he will ar-

rive at Marchmont, the property of Johu Gilniour, Esq.

The former proprietor, Sir John Harvey, went to consi-

derable expense in laying out the grounds in a pleasing

and tasteful manner. His successor, Sir Thomas Noel
Hill, also resided here, and duly appreciated its beauties.

The view in front of the house is grand. Here the River

widans and assumes the appearance of a Lake, whose
surface is enlivened by numerous merchant-ships at

anchor, and immense rafts of timber float down from
various parts of the Upper Province for shipment to Eng-
land> timber being one of the principal exports from the

Canadas. On leaving Marchmont he will pass some
beautiful villas, whose park-like grounds remind one of

England, and from some points in which are commanded
views worthy of a painter's study. Among these villas

may be mentioned AYolfesfield, Spencer Wood, and
Woodfield. The last was originally built by the Catholic

Bishop of Samos, and, from flie several additionis made
by subsequent proprietors, had a somewhat irregular,

though picturesque, appearance. It was burnt down,
and rebuilt in a tine regular style. It is now the resi-

dence of James Gibb, Esq.
In this neighbourhood is situated Mount Hermon Ce-

metery. It is about three miles from Quebec on the
south side of the St. Lewis Eoad, and slopes irregularly

but beautifully down the cliff which overhangs the St.

Lawrence. It is thirty-two acres in extent, and the

grounds were tastefully laid out by the late Major Dou-
glas, U. S. Engineers, whose taste and skill had been
previously shewn in the arrangement of Greenwood Ce-
metery, near New York. A carriage drive upward* s, of
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two miles in extent, affords access to all parts of the

grounds, and has been so arranged as to afford the most
perfect view of the scenery. The visitor, after driving

over the smooth lawn-like open surface, finds himself

suddenly transferred by a turn of the road into a dark

avenue of stately forest trees, from which he emerges to

see the broad St. Lawrence almost beneath him, with the

City of Quebec, and the beautiful slopes of Point Levi in

the distance.

Many beautiful monuments now adorn the grounds,

some of which are from Montreal and some from Scot-

land, but the great majority are the productions of Mr.

Felix Morgan, of Quebec, and do great credit to his taste

and skill. Many of them are beautiful and costly struc-

tures of Italian marble.

A neat Gothic Lodge at the entrance of the grounds,

contains the office and residence of the superintendent.

In, the former a complete plan of the grounds is kept,

every separate grave being marked upon it with its ap-

propriate number, so that at any future time, on consult-

ing it, the exact spot of Interment can be ascertained, and

the Register which is also kept affords information, res-

pecting the places of birlii, age and date of death. A
large vault, perfectly secured with iron doors, has been

constructed for the purpose of receiving bodies, during

the winter, when immediate interment is not desired ; and

a suitable stone chapel, in the Gothic style has been

erected adjacent to the grounds, where Divine Service,

according to the rites of the Church of England, is

performed. - : = ;;;.

On leaving this lovely spot, the ride continues through

the woods on the edge of the banks rising from the shore.

On the south side are distinguished the embouchures of
|

the Etchemin and Chaudiere pouring in their tribute of

waters. At Pointe aux Puisseaux the road leads down to

Sillery Cove. The view from this point would afford ai
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excellent composition for the brush of the landscape-

painter. Before reaching the ascent to the villa of the

late Mr. Macnider is an old stone house, formerly inha-

bited by the heroine of ** Emily Montague," near which
are the ruins of what was once a large stone chapel.

Such visitants as are unacquainted with this novel will

find in it a faithful picture of the manners and condition

of the colonist when Canada first became a British colony.

A mile beyond is the villa of Kilgraston. Hence the

Tourist, instead of returning by a road conducting

through a wood into St. Louis Road for Quebec, will do
better by continuing his ride to the Church of St. Foy,
from which is seen below the St. Charles gliding smooth-

ly through a lovely valley, whose sides rise grailually to

the mountains and are literally covered with habitations.

The villages of Lorette and Charlesbourg are conspicu-

ous objects. Before entering the Suburb of St. John, on
the banks of St. Charles stands the General Hospital,

designed, as the name implies, for the disabled and sick

of every description. Charlevoix says that "it is the

finest house in Canada, and would be no disparagement

to our largest houses in France ; the Fathers Eecollets

formerly owned the ground on which it stands. M. de

St. Vallier, Bishop of Quebec^ removed them into the

city, bought their settlements, and expended one hundred
thousand crowns in building, furniture and foundations."

The first ecclesiastics in Canada were Recollets, four in

number, brought out by Champlain in 1615. Their ori-

ginal habitation, consisting of a small lodge and semi-

nary, was on the spot where the General Hospital now
stands. Iv. was commenced before 1620. In 1690 the

RecoUets were induced to remove to grounds where the

Episcopal Church now stands. This foundation was at

first under the charge of the Sisters of the Congregation,

but in 1692 under that of the HospitaUeres or Nuns of

the Hotel Dieu ; from which community it received its

J(!

i

(/I

'f.'
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Superior and twelve professed Nuns. In 1701 the Nuns
of the General Hospital were made a separate and inde-

pendent community. At present it is governed by a Su-
perior, at the head of fifty Nuns and a few Novices and
Postulantes. The appearance, external and internal, is

regular and pleasing. The male patients are lodged on

the ground-floor, and the females in that above. The
Nuns are distinguished for the manufacture of Church
ornaments and for their skill in gilding. The produce
of their works is added to the general fund of the Insti-

tution, whose support is chiefly drawn from the revenue

oi the landed property that has been granted to it from
time to time. The deficiency is sometimes supplied by
grants from the Provincial Parliament. A neat chapel

is attached to the establishment. On the opposite side of

the road are two houses, one of which was appropriated

to the treatment of persons laboring under insanity, who
have since been removed to the Government Lunatic
Asylum at Beauport, and the other as a dwelling-house

for servants employed in a farm belonging to the estab-

lishment.

A day's excursion to Indian Lorette and Lake St.

Charles would gratify, we doubt not, many a Tourist,

It will be necessary to leave by six o'clock, A. M., and to

take provisions for the day. A caleche is the best con-

veyance for the trip. After leaving the Palace Gate, the

site of the former Intendant's Palace is passed. Mr. Bigot

was the last Intendant who resided in it.

The most pleasant road to Lorette is along the banks
of the St. Charles. On arriving at the village, the best

view is on the opposite bank. The fall is in the fore-

ground, and the church and village behind. The villa-

gers claim to be descended from those Hurons, to whom
the French Monarch in 1651 gave the seigniory of Sil-J

lery. In the wars between the French and English the

Hurons contributed much to the success of the former,
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as they were one of the most warlike tribes among the

aborigines of this oontinent. At present they are a

harmless quiet set of people, drawing only part of their

subsistence from fishing and hunting. A Missionary is

maintained by Government for their religious instruction,

and the schoolmaster belongs to the tribe. Here may be

purchased bows and arrows, and moccasins very neatly

ornamented by the squaws.

On arriving at Lake St. Charles, by embarking in a

double canoe, the tourist will have his taste for pictures-

que mountain scenery gratified in a high degree. The
lake is four miles long and one broad, and is divided into

two parts by projecting ledges. The lake abounds in

trout, so that the angling tourist may find this spot dou-

bly inviting. On the route back to the city the village of

Charlesbourg is passed. It is one of the oldest and most
interesting settlements in Canada. It has two churches,

one of which is the centre of the surrounding farms,

whence they all radiate. The reason for this singular

disposal of the allotments arose from the absolute neces-

sity of creating a neighborhood. For this purpose each
farm was permitted to occupy only a space of three

acres in front by thirty in depth. Population was in

these days scanty, and labourers were difficult to be pro-

cured. By this arrangement a road was more easily

kept up in front of each farm, and it was the duty of

every proprietor to preserve such road. Another ad-

vantage was the proximity of the church, whence the
bell sounded the tocsin of alarm, whenever hostile at-

tempts were made by the Indians, and where the inhabi-

tants rallied in defence of their possessions.

We take the liberty of presenting our readers almost
\ verbatim with the following interesting extracts, and
^thus conclude our notice of the ancient capital of Ca-
nada. The approach to the Citadel, which is nearly
two hundred feet higher than the ground on which
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the Upper Town is situated, is by a winding road made
through the acclivity of the Glacis from St. Louis

Gate, and commanded everywhere by the guns of the

different bastions. This leads into the outward ditch

of the ravelin, and thence into the principal ditch of the

work, built on both sides with walls of solid masonry,

and extending along the whole circumference of the

Citadel on the land and city sides. The main entrance

is through a massive gate of admirable construction,

called Dalhousie Gate in honour of the Earl of Dalhousie,

who succeeded the Duke of Richmond, as Governor-in-

Chief of these Provinces, in 1820. Within are the

Main-Guard-rooms for a detachment and an officer, who
are relieved every day ; and in front is a spacious area

used as a parade-ground, or rather an enlargement of

the ditch formed by the retiring angles and face of the

bastion. This is a splendid work, presenting a most
august appearance, and combining strength and symetry
with all the modern improvements in the art of fortifica-

tion. In the face of this bastion are loopholes for the

fire of musquetry ; on the top are embrasures for cannon.

The loopholes serve also for the admission of air and
light into the casemated barracks within for the troops

composing the Garrison. They are commodious and
well adapted for comfort and safety, being well ventil-

ated, and proof against fire and missiles of every des-

cription. On the top of Dalhousie Bastion is an extensive

covered way, or broad gravel walk, with embrasures for

mounting cannon, commanding every part of the Ditch

and Gflacis, and every avenue of approach to the Citadel.

From this elevated spot is obtained an extensive and
delightful view of the surrounding scenery, forming a

panorama that competent judges have pronounced not

inferior to the celebrated Bay of Naples. An equally'

magnificent view is obtained from the summit of the Ca-

valier, at the eastern extremity of the citadel, and also
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from the Observatory on its western point towards the

Plains of Abraham. Within the citadel are the various

magazines, store-houses, and other buildings required for

the accommodation of a numerous garrison ; and immedi-
ately overhanging the precipice to the south, in a most
picturesque situation looking perpendicularly downwards
on the river, stands a beautiful row of buildings, contain-

ing the mess rooms and barracks for the officers, their

stables and spacious kitchens. The fortifications, which
are continued round the whole of the Upper Town, con-

sist of bastions connected by lofty curtains of solid ma-
sonry, and ramparts from twenty-five to thirty-five feet in

height and about the same in thickness, bristling with

heavy cannon, round towers, loophole walls, and massive
gates recurring at certain distances. On the summit of

the ramparts from Cape Diamond to the Artillery Bar-

racks is a broad covered-way or walk, used as a place of

recreation by the inhabtants, and commanding a most
agreeable view of the country towards the west. This
pusses over the top of St John's and St. Louis Gate,

where there is stationed a sergeant's guard. Above St.

John's Gate there is at sunset one of the most beautiful

views imaginable. The St. Charles gamboling, as it

we|e, in the rays of the departing luminary, the light still

lingering on the spires of Lorette andCbarlesbourg until

it fades away beyond the lofty mountains of Bonhomme
and Tsounonthuan, present an evening scene of gorgeous
and surpassing^ splendor. The city, being defended on
the land side by its ramparts, is protected on the other

sides by a lofty wall and parapet, based on the cliff and
commencing near the St. Charles at the Artillery Bar-
racks. These form a very extensive range of buildings,

the part within the Artillery- Gate being occupied as bar-

racks by the officers and men of that distinguished corps,

with a guard and mess room. The part without the gate

is used as magazines, store-houses and offic^is for the
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Ordnance Department. These buildings were erected

by the French before 1750 on the site of others which
had formely stood there. They are well secured against

fire, and are nearly six hundred feet in length by about

forty in depth. Immediately adjoining the Artillery Bar-

racks, and connecting the works on the left with their

continuation along the St. Charles, stands Palace Gate,

having a guard-house attached to the right. This has

lately been rebuilt, and is the most classical and beauti-

ful of the five gates. Though perfectly strong for all

purposes of defence, it has an airy and light appearance,

not unlike in design the Gates of Pompeii. It stands at

the northern extremity of Palace Street, which was so

called from leading to the Intendant's House or Palace,

which formerly stood on the beach of the St. Charles out-

side of the gate, on the site of the present Queen's Wood-
yard. This building was destroyed during the siege by
the American troops under General Arnold in 1775.

From Palace Gate the fortifications are continued alonj^

the brow of the cliff overlooking the mouth of the St>

Charles, until they reach Hope Gate, a distance of three

hundred yards. A broad and level walk divides the out-

ward wall from the possessions of the community of the

Hotel-Dieu. The wall near Hope Gate and Guard-house
is loopholed for musketry. At Hope Gate commences !ne

gradual elevation of the ground which terminates at the

eastern point of Cape Diamond. Beyond the gate the

wall is continued until it reaches a point opposite St.

George Street and the store-house at the angle of the

Seminary Garden. Here it reaches the perpendicular

cliff Sault-aH'Matelotj or Matelofs (Sailor's) Leap^ so

called from a favorite dog of that name that there fell

' over the cliff, on part of which Champlain commenced
his first settlement in 1608. From this eminence the

Grand Battery, mounfing a range of heavy guns carrying

balls of thirty-two pounds, commands the basin and bar-
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bor below. In front of tlio Grand Battery, wliich ex-

tends to the Bishop's Palace, and where the escarpment
of the clift* is nearly three hundred feet above the water,

the stone i)arapet is but a few feet high. The black ar-

tillery, aslVofessor Silliuian obsivrves, ** look like beasts

of prey crouching and ready to leap upon their victims.''

Close to the Bishop's I^alace, long used as the place

wherr the Provincial Legislature met, is Prescott Gate
with its Guard-house. Under its arch is the principal

avenue to the Lower Town by Mountain Street. It is

protected by powerful defences, and by works which con-

nect it on the right with the former Castle of St. Louis.

Here the stone rampart forms part of that ruin, and is

supported by buttresses built upon the solid rock, and
immediately overlooking the Lower Town, at An eleva-

tion of more than two hundred feet. To the south-west
side of the Castle is the Government Garden, one hun-
dred and eighty yards long by seventy broad, within

which a small battery commands part of the harbor. In
front, the fortifications are continued three hundred yards,

until they reach the foot of the Glacis or acclivity to-

wards Cape Diamond, crowned at that point by the Kound
Tower and Flagstaff. , The extent of the ramparts to-

wards the land-side, from the south-west «angle of the

citadel to the cliff above the St. Charles, is stated to be
eighteen hundred and thirty-seven yards. Within this

rampart is the Esplanade, a level space covered with
grass, between St. Louis and St. John's Gates. Here
are mounted the several guards on duty at the citadel and
other public buildings each forenoon, except Sabbath, at

eleven o'clock; andheie occasional parades of the garri-

son take place, particularly on the Queen's birth-day.

The circuit of the fortifications enclosing the Upper Town
is two miles and three quarters; the total circumference

outside the ditches and space reserved by government,
up which no house ccin be built on the w^st side, is ?iboui

I
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tliree miles. Generally speaking, the city may be said to

be entirely surrounded by a lofty and strong wall of hewn
stone, constructed with elegance as well as with regard

to durability. The castellated appearance produced by

the battlements, ditches, embrasures, round towers and

gates, adds much to its grand and imposiufi' effect from

without. There are five gates, opening in "^erent direc-

tions to the country, the suburbs and the Lower Town.
Towards the south-west are St. John's and St. Louis

Gates, protected by out-works of great strength and pow-
erful combination. Through the latter is the road lead-

ing to the Plains of Abraham and the race-course. On
the left of this road, on the brow of a slight ascent about

half-way to the race-stand, is one of the four Martello

'I'owers erecied at different distances between the St.

Lawrence and the St. Charles. On these are mounted
cannon to sweep the undefended plain below ; and they

are so constructed that, if taken by an enemy, they can

be easily laid in ruins by the shot of the garrison, while

on the side facing the Plains they are of immense thick-

ness. Through St. John's Gate passes the road to the

populous suburb of that name and to the beautiful vil-

lage of St.. Foy. Palace Gate and Hope Gate open to

the St. Chartes and the Lower Town. Prescott Gate is

the principal thoroughfare to the Lower Town, and not-

withstanding the steepness of the ascent, heavy burdens

are conveyed up with comparative ease by the small, but

hardy hordes of Norman breed, which the carters gene-

rally employ. Hope Gate and Prescott Gate are called

in honor* of the Liutenant Generals and Oommanders-in-
(]hief; Henry Hope (1775) and Ribert Prescott (1796-9.)

Having made the circuit of the fortifications, it seems
necessary to notice the different barracks and military

buildings for the accommodation of the troops composing
the garrison. Besides those contained within the Citadel

and the Artillery Barracks, the spacious building in the
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Market Place, formerly the Colloge of the Jesuits, hasi

lonj< been occupied by the Queen's troops under the name
of the ** Jesuits' Barracks." The principal entrance is

from the Market Place, opposite the French Cathedral.

To the left of this entrance is a large door opening; inio

a hall. Here is the room set apart for the Garrison Li-

brary, the property of the military, containing many va-

luable books and maps. A little beyond the gate is the

Barrack-office, nearly opposite to the Scotch Church.
In the Place d'Armes, opposite to the Court House, is the

Commissariat Office. About half-way between this and
8t. Louis Gate is a building on the left, occupied as quar-

ters for such officers of the garrison as do not reside in

the citadel, in rear of which is the spacious mess-roon).

At the end of an avenue or court leading out of St. Louis

Street, is the Military Hospital, a building completely

provided with every necessary appointment. Adjoining

to the St. Louis Gate, and fronting to the Esplanade, is

the Royal Engineer Office ; and in the rear are the spa-

cious yard and workshops of the Royal Sappers and
Miners, a detachment of which corps is always station d

in Quebec. The officers of the Royal Engineers have
charge of the fortifications and of all military works.

The Government Laboratory is on the right hand of

the road leading to the Citadel, opposite to the Royal
Engineer Yard, and stands on the site of an old powder
magazine, close to which the remains of General Mont-
gomery were interred on January 4th, 1776. The follow-

ing elegant peroration is from the pen of Professor Silli-

man, who visited Quebec in 1819:

—

** Quebec, at least for an American city, is certainly a

very peculiar place. A military town—containing about

twenty thousand inhabitants—most compactly and per-

manently built—environed, as to its most important parts,

by walls and gates—and defended by numerous heavy

cannon—garrisoned by troops having the arms, the cos-

i

'^
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tumo, tlie music, tlio clisciplino of p]nr(>|)0—foreign in

language, features and origin, from most of those whom
they are sent to defend—founded upon a rock, and in its

highest parts overlooking a great extent of country

—

l)et\veen three and four liundred miles from the ocean

—

in the midst of a great continent and yet displaying fleets

of foieign merchantmen in its fine capacious bay—and
showing all the ])ustle of a crowded sea-port

—

its Streets

narrow, populous, and winding up and down almost

mountainous declivities—situated in the latitude of the

finest parts of Europe—exhibiting in its environs the

beauty of an European capital—and yet in winter smart-

ing with the cold of Siberia—governed by a people of

diti'erent language and habits from the mass of the popu-
lation—opposed in religion, and yet leaving that popula-

tion without taxes and in the full enjoyment of every

privilege, civil and religious. Such are the prominent
features which strike a stranger in the City of Quebec !"

The Tourist will of course visit the Fall of Montmo-
renci, and, if an admirer of nature in her lovely grandeur,

may be induced thereafter to extend his excursion to the

Falls of St. Anne, (a distance of upwards of twenty miles

from Quebec,) which many travellers have pronounced
unsurpassed in any quarter of the globe. For this pur-

pose he will leave the City by passing over Dorchester
Bridge, across the St. Charles, whence he will pass along
pleasant cottages and handsodie villas to the village of

]k»auport, in which is conspicuous the Church with its

three spires. The admirably managed Lunatic Asylum
for Eastern Canada is situated close to the village. Be-
fore reaching the Mills a road on the left leads to the
hamlet of Bourg Royal at the base of the mountains.
Two miles bevoud are the remains of an old French
chateau with a scanty clearance embosomed by the forest.

It was built by a French Intendant or Governor for his

mistress. Notwithstanding \he seclusion of the spot his

tl

1
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wife discovtM'cd the secret, and found means to have lior

rival poisoned. The habitans supcrstitiously consider

the spot as haunted b}' the spirit of the unhappy one.

During General Wolfe's siege the ladles of Quebec took

shelter here, and were undiscovered. In the neighl)or-

hood of the I'all the geologist may find not a Hltle to

interest him. The Fall is nearly two hundred and fifty

feet high, thus greatly exceeding the Falls of Niagara.

It was named by Cham]>lain in honor of his patron, the

Duke de Montmorenci, prime minister of France. The
mansion-house, close to tlie Fall, and commanding the

best view of it, was built by General Haldimand, who
was the last Governor of the Province of Quebec from

1778 to 1791. It was afterwards occupied by the Duke
of Kent, father of Queen Victoria, and is now in the pos-

session of G. B. Hall, Esq., the proprietor of the exten-

sive saw-mills at the foot of the Fall. Near this place

Wolfe made his first attempt, and was repulsed with the

loss of seven hundred Hessians. On the opposite side

of the wooden bridge thrown a(;ross the Montmorenci,

stands a house for the reception of travellers, whence is

an excellent view of the Fall, as it embraces the village

of Beauport and the City of Quebec. Another good

view is from the top of the Aqueduct, by which the water

is conveyed for nearly a mile to the Mills. The Old
Mill has ten saw-gates containing seventy saws, and
eleven circular saws. The New Mill has two saw gatCvS

with forty saws, and three circular saws. The extra-

ordinary appearance, called the Natural Steps, is

worthy of attention. It may be remarked as an object

of interest to the naturalist, that, when the St. Law-
rence is frozen below the Fall, the level ice becomes a

support on which the freezing spray descending as sleet,

forms a stupendous deposit, and gradually assumes a

conical form of great dimensions towards the close of

winter. These dimensions vary in each season accord-

i

il
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ing to the quantity of spray which the Water produces.

In 1829 the cone attained the height of one hundred and
twenty-six feet, the highest it has been observed to attain.

The face of the cone next the Fall presents a stalacti-

tical structure, occasioned by the dashing of the water
against iv. The whole is tinged with an earthy hue,

which is no doubt derived from the very minute parti-

<*les of the bed of the Montmorenci conveyed with the

spray into the atmosphere. The formation of this cone

may serve to explain the mode in which glaciers have
been formed. It L manifest, that, were the supply of

frozen spray never interrupted by an increase of tem-

perature, as is annually the case, the cone's dimen-
sions would incessantly increase. If the cone rested on
an inclined plane instead of a horizontal base, the en-

larging bulk and increasing weight would at length

cause Its subsidence to lower levels. As the portion

thus deposited would continue to receive accessions from
above, a permanent frozen mass would be the result, and
the cone would become a glacier. Professor Forbes
treats of this subject in i\ most interesting and scientific

manner in his " Travels in the Alps." It is unneces-

sary to enumerate the variety of features in Canadian
scenery which may induce the tourist to loiter on the

road between Montmorenci and St. Anne. At this sea-

son of the year groups of Canadians of both sexes may
be seen busily employed in hackling or beating flax. On
most of the farms there is raised a quantity sufficient for

the consumption of each family. Indeed the stranger

cannot fail to have observed, that the country population

is chiefly clothed in home-spun woollen cloth and coarse

linen, although English broad-cloth and Irish linens may
to a limited extent be displayed on Sabbaths and fete-

days. Chateau Richer, one of the very few ruins in

Canada, belonging to the Seminary, is interesting from
historical associations. Its environs afford abundant

li
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Sport to snipe-shooters. Two miles beyond the Cliateau

it is worth the tourist's while to devote half an hour to the

Falls of La Puce. The Church of "La Bonne Ste.

Anne" has long been an object of interest from the mira-

culous cures said to have been wrought on the visitors to

the shrine. The walls display crutches and other helps

to suffering humanity, with which the halt and the lame
were enabled to dispense, and which they left as memo-
rials of the efficacy of their faith in the power of the Saint.

In connection with St. Anttyt may be stated that pigeons

in vast numbers yearly visit Canada, when the inhabi-

tants not only get an ample supply for their own subsis-

tence, but send sucii numbers to market that in Quebec
they are sold at as low a price as a shilling per dozen,

and sometimes even at a less rate. The parishioners of

St. Anne are much spoken of for the successful means
which they have adopted for killing and taking alive

thousands of these birds ; and the stranger on enquiry

can learn the method, by which the sportsman seldom

fails to bring down all the pigeons as they settle on the

loftiest trees, and how, by means of perpendicular nets

and poles managed by pulleys, whole flocks are en-

trapped. Two miles beyond the village of St. Anne, at

the Toll-bridge on the river of this name, the tourist may
be comfortably accommodated, and will meet with civi-

lity and kindness. Hence he can procure a guide to the

Falls, which are situated about three miles further on.

The ascent commands extensive views of Quebec and the

surrounding country. After continuing his journey for a

mile and a half on a level but rather rough and weari-

some path through a forest, the tourist suddenly descends

and finds himself enclosed in a rocky and wooded valley,

through the centre of which rushes the St. Anne, and,

forcing itself through a narrow chasm of the rocks at an
angle of forty-five degrees, continues to roar and tumble
to the river below. We cannot afford space here for a

1
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description of the variety of awfully grand and imposing
scenes, which a visit to these niajjrnificent Falls will pre-

sent to the tourist's view. Suffice it to say, that the

time slips unconsciously away, and, surprised by the in-

formation that he has been on the spot for hours, he at

length reluctantly turns away, consoling himself with

the reflection that he can never efface the sublime picture

from his mind. '
' "

The tourist should next cross from Quebec to Poiute

Levi, with which a steam-feyjpy-boat keeps up a constant

communication, with the view of visiting the Falls of the

Chaudiere, distant about eight miles. On itscending the

bank, and from different points along the entire road to

the mouth of the Chaudiere, he will be gratified with im
posing views of Quebec and its shipping, and surroundi 4:.

scenery, including the Isle of Orleans, the Fall of Mout-
morenci, and the Plains of Abraham. Several neat

villas adorn the road, in which citizens of Quebec reside

during the summer season. At a short distance beyond
Lauzon, formerly the seat of Sir Henry Caldwell, which is

in a charming situation, you cross the Etchemin by a

wooden bridge. At its embouchure is a large causeway
leading to this gentleman's mills, an establishment well

worthy of inspection. Thereafter the left side of the road

is overshadowed by the rocks till it reaches the Chaudiere,

which is crossed by a ferry. Three miles beyond is a

new road to the left, by pursuing which for a mile, avail-

ing yourself of a guide, who may be procured hard by,

you will reach this celebrated Fall. Although yielding

in grandeur to Niagara and Montmorenci, it possesses

features more interesting than either. The river, in its

course of one hundred miles over a rugged bed full of

rapids and falls, is here narrowed to a width of between
three hundred and four hundred feet, and is precipitated

over a height of about one hundred and thirty feet,

preserving the characteristic features of its boiling waters

t J-

,jr



THE QDEBEC GUIDE. 33

)osing

11 pre-

at the

he in-

he at

with

icture

Poiute

nslant

of the

ng the

Dad to

Xh \m

Mont-
1 neat

reside

levond
I

V

ieh is

by a

seway
t well

eroad
diere,

d is a

avail-

rd by,

elding

sesses

in its

full of

tweeu
itated

feet,

vaters

1

till it mingles with the St. Lawrence. Hence it has

received the appropriate name of Chaudiere or Caldron,

Instead of descending in one continuous sheet, it is

divided by large projecting rocks into three channels or

cataracts, which however unite before reaching the basin

below. A globular-figure is imparted to the descending
volumes of brilliant white foam, in consequence of the

deep excavations of the rocks, and the clouds of spray

produce in the sunshine a most brilliant variety of

prismatic colours. The dark green foliage of the dense
forests that overhang the torrent on both sides, forms a
striking contrast with its snow-white foam. If the .

Tourist should be so minded, on returning half way to

Pointe Levi, he may visit the Falls of the Etchemin by
taking the road to his right. On returning to Poiute

Levi, he may find time to walk to Aubigny Church, and
wander for a while amongst the glades in front of it.

In recrossing the St. Lawrence, the Tourist may be

reminded of the striking contrast which the winter

season presents here on land and water. Then the river

is generally choked up with broken fields of ice exhibiting

an endless variety of fantastic appearances. The habi-

tans cross in canoes, and are frequently obliged to haul
nil push them foward among the blocks of ice. It is a

^. o occurrence for the ice to be quite firm between Que-
L 'C and Pointe Levi. When this is the case a sort of

jubiLe is indulged in, and persons are seen enjoying them-
selves in every direction by sleighing, sliding, skating,

curling, &c. A ready communication betwixt both shores

then takes place, as the track marked out by means of

pine-branches as beacons, forms a road, over which hay,

firewood, and other bulky articles are transported in trai-

naux or sledges. A similar laying-out of roads takes

place on the taking of the River at all the important

thoroughfares, as in front of Montreal, Three Rivers,

&;c. The channel between the Isle of Orleans and the

I
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North Shore is frozen over annually, when the produce
of that fertile spot can be conveyed to market.

Thus far we have brought our companions, and various

are the scenes of interest we have visited with them,

but we fear with many our fellowship will cease at the

wharves of the ancient city
;
yet we trust that a large

'* balance, " to use an Americanism, will still continue

their journey East, for a voyage to the Saguenay and the

Lower St. Lawrence offers temptations that ought not to

be resisted. Formerly this voyage was only made by
the young and the hardy, for no means existed of reach-

ing it except in V^^i'ng schooners or open boats. Now,
things are entirely banged, steamboats, well fitted for

the work, leave Queoec twice a week, and ere this sum-
mer's navigation closes probably daily. In any of these

the trip may be made in perfect comfort and even luxury

VScii
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SINGLAmS READING ROOMS
AND

PICTUKE QALLEHY,
OVEft THE BOOK STORE, ST. JOHN STREET, UUEBEC.

Subscription t lbs. per annum. 7s. Gd. half yearly. 3s. 9d-
quarierly. Non-Subscriber, '2d. each visit,

> ti ;; Boys under Fifteen Years, Ten Shillings per annum.

Open from9 A, M., till 10 P. M., Daily, (Sunday excepted)

WEEKLY.

ic

. ..SI

BOOKS OF REFERENCE
IN THE ROOM.

THE National Atlas of General
Geography,

Pronouncing Gazetteer of the

World,
Griffin's Biographical Dictionary

Hart's Annual Army List,

Smith's Classical Dictionary,

Webster's English '

The London Directory, Eng-
land,

New York General Directory,
'* Businest; "

Philadelphia
Boston
Canadian
Montreal
Quebec **

Newspapers, Magazines, Sfc,

received vid European, Ame-
rican, and Canadian

mails, throughout
the year.

EUROPEAN ROOM.
DAILY.

The Times, London,
SEMI-WEEKLY.

The Witness, Edinburgh,

The Leader,
Racing Times,
Manchester Examiner and
Times,
Edinburgh Herald,
Glasgow Chronicle,

" Courrier,
Dublin Warder,
Limerick Chronicle,
Illustrated News,

Times,
Weekly "

Lloyds' Weekly Paper,
Reynold's Newspaper,
Bell's " Messenger,
Bell's Life in London,
News of the World,
The Times, (Wesleyan,)

Watchman, *'

M.'U'k Lane Express,
Guardian, High Church,
Spectator,

Minning Journal,
" John Bull,

Examiner,
Builder,

Athenaeum,
Saturday Review, *

Naval and Military Gazette,
Punch,
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Courrier de I'Europe, French,
The Albion, (Liverpool,)

•' European Times,
Nation, (Dublin,)
Tablet,

L' Illustration, French, Paris.

AMERICAN & CANADIAN
ROOM.
DAILY.

Quebec Chronicle,
" Colonist, • .

Montreal Gazette,
Pilot,

Commercial Advertiser,
Toronto Globe,

" Leader,
Hamilton Spectator,

Boston Atlas,

New York Tribune,
Herald,
Commercial Adver-

tiser,

TRI-WEEKLY.
Quebec Mercury,

Gazette,
Journal,
Canadien,
Le National,

((

Montreal La Minerve,
Dundas Warder,
Ottawa Canadian Monarchist,
Kingston Herald,

SEMI-WEEKLY.
London Herald.

WEEKLY.
New York Spirit of the Tim'es,

Three Rivers Inquirer.

MAGAZINE ROOM.
Blackwood's Magazine,
Westminster Review,
Edinburgh '*

London Quarterly "

North British

Hart's Quarterly Army List,

Monthly Army List,

Eclectic Magazine,
Hunt's Merchants' Magazine,
Harper's **

Putnam's "

Household Words,
Chambers' Journal,

Farmers' "

Albany Cultivator,

Braithwait's Retrospect,
Rankin's Abstract.

Leslie's Illustrated Journal.

Quebec, June, 1857.
i I

asiajiSiJ.
BOOKSELLER, STATIONER, BOOKBINDER,

AND PRINTER.

HAS always ou hand a large assortment " Miscellaneous Books
and Stationery. The latest English Papers and Books received

per Steamers and Express.

Quebec, June, 1857.
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ENGLISH EDITIONS OF NEW AND TO

PULAR NOVELS.

THE Joint Stock Banker. A Tale of the Day 2 6

The Wreck of the Golden Mary, by Charles Dickens 7^
Report of the Trial of William Palmer 1 S

Mirth and Metre, by Two Merry Men 1

Pictures of Town 1 ^

Our Own Correspondent 2
One Thousand Things Worth Knowing 1 3

How to Woo 7i
How to Behave 7 A

Bridal Etiquette 7^
How to Dress with Taste 7^
The Stepmother, by James 2 6
Two Years Before the Mast, by Dana 2 6
Christmas Cheer 3

Palmyra, by W. W. Ware 2 6

The Mayflower, by Mrs. H. B. Stowe 1 6

Dred, do. do 2 6

London City Tales 1 8

Transatlantic Wanderings 6
The Family Feud 2 6
James the Second, by Ainsworth 1 6
The Money Lender, by Mrs. Gore 1 6
Sybil, by Disraeli 2 6
What We Did in Australia 1 3
Maurice Tiernay, or the Soldier of Fortune 3 6
Our Own Times of Political Reformers 1 6
Christmas and How it wfis Spent *. 1 3
Border Tales, by Maxwell 1 8
Angela, by Mary Hewitt = 10

A Country Vicarage 10

The Inheritance , 10

Northanger Abbey, by Miss Austin 10
Life of General Pierce 1 9
Franklin and the Arctic Regions 3
Charms and Counter Charms, by Miss Mcintosh 1 6
Ennui, by Miss Edgeworth 1 6
Lectures in connection with Arts, Manufactures, «fec 2 6
The Marchioness of Brinvilliers 2 q
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Tho Ward, by Mrs. Trollope I 6
Famous Persons and Famous Places 2 6
The Priest and the Huguenot 2 6
A Simple Story of Nature and Art 3
Drafts for Acceptance, by G. Kayinond '2 ^'

Captain Macdonald, or Ilaps and Mishaps 2 C>

Landmarks of the History of Greece 2 6
George Mayford—Adventures of an Fimigrant 2 6
Marguerite do Valois, by Dumas 3
Sports and Adventures, by W. H. Maxwell 2
Pirates of the Mississrippi, by Gerstacker 2 6
Wild Sports in the Far West, do 2 U
The Green Hand, a Sea Story 2
The Soldier of Fortune, by Captain Curling 2 6
The Romance of War, by James Grant 3
The Haunted House, by Gerstacker 1 6
An Englislmian's Travels iu America I €
Kcal Happiness, or the Philanthropist 2 6
Fashion and Famine 2 G
Lion Hunting by Jules Gerard 1 3
The Emperor's Vigil, by Ernest Jones j.- 1 6
America and tlie Americans 2 6
The English Sketch Book :.... I 6
Historyfof the Conquest of Mexico, by Prescott 1 6
The Hills of the Snatemuc, by the Author of the Wide,
Wide World, &,c 2 6

The Wide, Wide World 2 6
Queechy 2 6
Our Scliool, by Oliver Oldfellow 1 6
Waverley, by Sir Walter Scott 2 6
The Antiquary, do 2 6
Guy Mannering, do 2 6
Old Mortality, do 2 6
Carlton's Traitsand Stories of the Irish .A 2 6
The Art of Transparent Painting on Glass 2
Transparency Painting on Linen 2
Hand-Book of Light and Shade, with reference to Model
Drawing 2

The Art of Figure Drawing
"

2
Do. Landscape Painting in Oil Colours 2

Instructions for Cleaning. Repairing and Restoring Oil

Paintings 2-

The Art of Portrait Painting in Oil Colours 2

Po. ^0. do. Water Colours.,..,...,... 2
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BATHING ESTABIJSHMENT,

|)alare Street, opposite Jiiissell's |)otel

'%>'

TERMS for One Frksti Water Rath, Is. 3d One Shower
1 Bath, Is. lO^Jd. One Salt Water Bath, 'Sa.

Every doscriplion of Hot, Cold, Shower, Sa!i, Vapor and Medi-
caI Haths can be taken.

Cy The Baths are open daily, from 6 A. M. to 10 P. M.,'and
on Sundays from 5 to 8 A. M. ^
The under.sij^ncd are Aj^onts for the Caxton and Planta :t

Mineral Waters, which may bo purchased in any quantitiei

at their establishment. They are sole Agents in Quebec for thu

Caxton Spring Water.
A Hair Dressinj*- Saloon has been opened in connection with th«

premises by Air. R. Smeaton.
GOSSELIN & LARUE.

Quebec, June, 1857.

ST. MICHEL & DARyIaU^"
JOB Pi^INTERS,

Wo. 11, MOUNTAIN STREET, LOWER TOWN,QUEBEC.
I^'^VERY description .of Printing done with despatch, on liberal
J terms.

Also.—On hand a splendid assortment of Fancy Show Cards,
Business Cards, Visiting Cards, Colored Cards, &c.

Quebec, June, 1857. •
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Murray Bay, Riviere-du-Loup, and
River Saguenay.

TJIK FIRST CLASS SEA-GOING STKAMEU

I

CAPTAIN RENE SIMARD,

EAVES every WEDNESDAY MOKNING during the summer
i season for tho

RIVER SAaUEFAY,
Proceeding as far as tho far-famed

WA^ MJM W^^' "^

And calling at MURRAY BAY, RIVIERE-DU-LOUP and tho

HUDSON BAY TRADING POST

The oldest settlement in Canada.

The Steamer also leaves every SATURDAY MORNING for

RIVIERE-DU-LOUP, calling at RIVIERE-OUELLE and MUR-
RAY BAY.

Any further information can be obtained at the office of

J. LAIRD,
St. Lawrence Chambers, Lower Town.

Quebec, June, 1857.
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THE BOOKS IN THE FOLLOWING LIST

tVill he found to he the very hest and latest publications hy the most
popular and celchratcd icriters in the icorld. They arc also the

most rcadahlo and entertaining hooks, and are printed for the
'* Million,''^ at very cheap rates, and copies of all or any of them
will he sent hy mail, to any person, on receipt of the advertised

price. They are suitable for the

PAKLOR, LIBEARY, SITTING-EOOM, RAILROAD, STEAM-
BOAT, OR CHAMBER READING,

FOR SALE BY

P. SINCLAIR,
NO. ^8, ST. JOHN STBEET.

MUS HELEN PICKERING'S WORKS.
ARPHAN NIECE... 1 3
V/ Kate Walsing'ham 1 3
Poor Cousin 1 3
Ellen Wareliam 1 3

WhoShallbe Heir? 1 3

Secret Foe 1 3
Expectant 1 3

Fri^^dit 1 3

Quiet Husband 1 3
Nan Darrell 1 3

Prince and Pedlar «. 1 3
Merchant's Daughter 1 3
The Squire 1 3
Agnes Serle ... - 1 3
The Heires 1 3
The Grumbler 2 6

CHARLES DICKENS'.

David Copperfield 2 6
Dombev ai d Son 2 G
Nicholas Nickleby 2 6
Pickwick Papers 2 6
Christmas Stories . 2 6
Martin Chuzzlewit 2 6
Barna))y Rudge 2 6
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EUGENE SUE'S.

Martjin, the Foundling 5
Wandering Jew „ 5
Mysteries of Paris 5
FirstLove 1 3

Woman's Love 1 3
Man of War's-Man 1 3
Female Bluebeard 1 3

Kaoule do Surville 1 3

CHARLES LEVER'S.
Charles O'Malley 2 6
Knight of Gwynne 2 6
Arthur O'Lcarj 2 6
Tom Burke of Ours 2 6
*Tack Hinton 2 6
Harry Lorrequer 2 6
Horace Templeton 2 6
Kate O'Donoghue , 2 6

Lever's works are also bound in four volumes, in black
cloth, for £1 10s. Scarlet cloth, £1 12s. 6d. Law-
Library sheep £1 15s. Half calf £2 5s.

Ten Thousand a Year 5 6

Valentine Vox, the Ventriloquist 2 6
Con Cregan 2 6
The Sisters 2 6
The Steward 2 6
Percy Effingham 2 6

ALEXANDRE DUMAS'.
Count of Monte Christo, 2 volumes, 5
The Three Guardsmen • 3 9
Twenty Years After 3 9
Bragelonne 3 9
The Iron Hand 2 6
Forty-Five Guardsmen 3- 9
Memoirs of a Marquis 5
Andree de Taverney 5

.

Countess of Cliarny 5
The Iron Mask 5
Louise La Vallicre 5
Memoirs of a Physician 5
Queen's Necklace 5
Diana of Meridor --. 5
Six Years Later 5 U

1
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The Conscript 5 o
The Thousand and One Phantoms 2 6
Gee j'ge, or the Planter of tlie Isle of France 2 6
Fernande, a Story of Life in Paris 2 6
Felina de Chambure 2 6
Genevieve 2 6
Sketches in France 2 6
Isabel of Bavaria 2 6
Evimond Dantos • 2 6
Corsican Brothers 1 3

LIPPARD'S WORKS.

Washington & Generals 5
Quaker City 5
Paul Ardenheim 5
Blanche of Brandywine 5
The Nazarene 2 6
Legends of Mexico 1 3
I^dy of Albarone 5

COOK BOOKS.

Miss Leslie's New Cookery Book * 6 3
Widdfield's New Cook Book 5
Mrs. Hale's Four Thousand & Five Ret -ipts 5
Miss Leslie's New Receipts for Cooking 5

Mrs. Hale's New Cook Book 5

CAPT. MARRIATT'S.

Jacob Faithful 1 3
Japhet Search of Father J 3
Phantom Ship ' 3
Midshipman Easy 1 3
Pacha of Many Tales 1 3
Naval Officer - 1 3
Snarleyow 1 3
Newton Foster , 1 3
King's Own 1 3
Pirate & Three Cutters 1 3
Peter Simple 2 6
Percival Keene 2 6
Poor Jack 2 6
Sea King 2 6
Yalerio 2 6
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Henrietta Temple.
Vivian Grey
Venetia
Young Duke
Miriam Alroy
Contarini Fleming

THE QUEBEC GUIDE.

D'lSRAELI'S WORKS.

W

BULWER'S NOVELS.

The Roue
Falkland
The Oxonians \

Calderon, the Courtier

BY BEST AUTHORS.
Currer Lyle
Modern Chivalry, cloth

Columbia, the Beautiful Blonde
Life and Beauties of Fanny Fern
The Pride of Life

Autobiography of an Orphan Girl

The Student. •

Adelaide Waldg-rave
Greatest Plague of Life

Uncle Tom's Cabin as it is

Tom Racquet
Mysteries of Three Cities

Red Indians of Newfoundland
Roman Traitor

Salathiel, by Croley
Aristocracy •

,

Inquisition in Spain
Flirtations in America
The Coquette
Arrah Neil, by James
Life in the South
Sketches in Ireland

Whitehall
Whitefriars ,

Wild Sports of W^est

Cabin and Parlor

Romish Confessional

Quebec, 1857.
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W. NORMAN'S

VICTORIA HOTEL,
POINTE LEVI,

OPPOSITE QUEBEC,
ADJOINING THE TERMINUS OF THE

GRAND TRUNK RAILWAY.

i

) This Hotel has been enlarged and refitted

in a most elegant style, Travellers and Tourists

will find it a most comfortable and pleasant

resting place, having a splendid view of the

% River St. Lawrence, and being surrounded by r

^ a large and beautiful Garden. ^

STEAMBOATS crossing from the Hotel to

Quebec, every 10 minutes.

8@^ Permits to visit the Citadel may be had
at the Office.

HOT, COLD, & SHOWER BATHS
At any minute. (
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